
 

BMT Bis-Man Transit Board Meeting 
November 16, 2023, 11:30 AM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83471633238 
Call in: +1 312 626 6799; Meeting ID: 834 7163 3238 

 
Welcome & Introductions  
 
Approval of Agenda  
 
Consent Agenda 

1. Previous Month’s Minutes 
a. Attachment A – 2023/10/26 Regular Meeting 
b. Attachment B – 2023/11/13 CTIC Meeting 
c. Attachment C – 2023/11/13 Finance Committee Meeting 

 
2. Financial Report  

a. Attachment D 
 

3. Ride Stats 
a. Attachment E 

Public Comment 
 
New Business 

1. Ticket/Pass Refund Policy 
a. Attachment F 

 
2. 5310 Grant Application Approval 

a. Attachment G 
 

3. 5339 Grant Application Approval 
a. Attachment H 

 
4. Stuff the Bus 

 
5. 2024 Budget Approval 

a. Attachment I 

Executive Director Report 
1. No Show & Rider Drop-off Update 

 
2. Red Route Revision Update 

 
3. Ridership Update 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83471633238


Operations Report 

Other Business 

Adjourn 

• The next Board Meeting will be held on December 21, 2023, at 11:30 am. •



BMT Bis-Man Transit Board Meeting 
October 26, 2023, 11:30 AM 

Via Zoom & In-person at  
3750 E Rosser Ave Bismarck, ND 58501 

Attending: Lynn Wolf, President DeNae Kauztmann, Secretary/Treasurer 

Lacey Long, Vice President Helen Baumgartner 

Karel Sovak  Glenn Lauinger 

Royce Schultze  Andrew Stromme 

Commissioner Rohr 

Not Attending:  Commissioner Connelly 

Staff: Deidre Hughes  Taylor Kitzan 

Mike Mundahl Craig Thomas  

Danae Thiery  Tom Reisenauer 

Guests:  Rachel Lukazewski Paulette Jacobsen 

Susan Dingle 

A



  

Meeting was called to order at 11:30 A.M. 
 
Approval of Agenda: Lynn moved the Unfinished Business item “Transit Development Plan Final 
Presentation” to Other Business. Karel moved to approve the Agenda with the change. Steve 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: Karel moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Lacey seconded the motion. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 
Public Comment: N/A 
 
Unfinished Business 

1. Funding Update: Deidre discussed that the funding request to City of Mandan for the year 1 
request was approved at the City Commission meeting. The City Commission was supportive 
and Deidre was pleased with how the meeting went. Deidre asked if a Future Funding 
Committee was of interest to get started by the Board. Lynn asked the Board if there were 
any Board Members that would be willing to serve on that Committee. Andrew answered 
that he would be interested. Deidre explained that she will ask CTIC members and other 
advocates that were involved in the funding request discussions to serve as well. Karel 
answered that he would be able to serve on the Committee as he is able.  

New Business 
1. Procurement Policy Update: Deidre explained that there were no major changes to the 

Procurement Policy. The only change made was the addition of forms that were 
recommended by members attending the DTA conference. Karel moved to approve the 
Procurement Policy as presented. Andrew seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. Karel commended Deidre on her work put into the Procurement Policy, as it is 
very detailed.  

 
Executive Director Report 

1. Fall Projects: Deidre explained that the following: 
• NDDOT released 5310 and 5339 grants and need to be submitted by the end of 

November. The grant applications will be presented for approval at the November 
Board Meeting.  

• 2024 Budget and will work with the Finance Committee to have it presented at the 
November Board Meeting as well.  

• Part of On-Time Performance issue is because there are riders that drivers are 
waiting at least 17 minutes for staff to be present for drop offs. No shows are also 
high. Danae will help to work through these issues.  

• The new AVL software, Passio, is now live. There was good media coverage of the 
new software to the public. 

• Mike has presented to the Men of Faith Group as well as at Touchmark. 



  

• U-Mary Ride Day - Decorated the CAT bus on green route and made a trip planner 
for students to ride to Walmart and back to campus. This was very successful.  

• National Express is still working in the CDL repayment plan. Legal is still working on 
logistics of the plan.  

 
2. Ridership Update: Deidre stated that we are already over 9,000 trips so far for the month of 

October. Reporting from Passio is more accurate and can be trusted. U-Mary pickups are at 
383 trips so far this month and that’s a record.  

 
Operations Report: Danae discussed that since the last Board meeting, 3 driver trainees have 
completed training. A new training class starts on November 6th with one trainee so far, and 5 
upcoming interviews. Danae explained that per policy, rides must be cancelled at least 30 minutes 
prior to the scheduled pickup time, otherwise the ride will be considered a late cancelation no-
show. Late cancelations cause rerouting and scheduling changes. Without proper notice, a bus 
could be in route to the pick-up destination and must be redirected, which in turn takes time away 
from picking up the other rides on-time. No-shows at pick-ups are different than late cancelation 
no-shows because we have to wait at least 5 minutes at the pick-up location before we can consider 
it a no-show per federal law. This also takes time away from picking up other rides on time and it 
takes up bus capacity that could have been given to someone else. Another on-going issue is 
waiting for staff at drop-off destinations for riders that can’t be left alone. These are mostly day-
program riders, and we have waited up to 25 minutes for staff to show up at drop-off destinations. 
Danae calculated that in Q3 of this year, drivers have spent roughly 63 hours waiting at locations 
either for no-shows or riders’ staff. Bis-Man has a policy in place to suspend riders for certain 
periods of time depending on the number of no-show violations, but that doesn’t seem to deter 
riders from continuing to do so. Danae hopes by bringing this concern to the public, riders 
understand why these policies and procedures are in place and the impact they have on the system 
as a whole. Danae mentioned that winter weather may cause detours and delays, so Operations asks 
for patience and understanding during this time. 
 
 
Royce asked what the 63 hours’ time period was. Danae answered Quarter 3, which is July, August, 
and September 2023. Lynn asked Danae to explain what “waiting for staff members” means. Danae 
answered that some agencies are responsible for riders at day programs and job coaching, and an 
example of that would be HIT staff. The other agencies would be in-home care that help riders at 
their residence.  
 
Other Business 

1. Transit Development Plan Final Presentation (Bill Troe, SRF Consulting): Bill Troe presented 
on the Final TDP which included the following: 

• Short-term and long-term funding options 
• Service Changes/Reductions if that funding is not obtained 
• The option of becoming a Transit Authority in the future 



  

 
Susan Dingle asked Bill to clarify if putting Transit under the City of Bismarck or creating a Transit 
Authority would be more expensive than how the service is running currently. Bill answered yes, 
but decision making would become more streamlined.  
 
Glenn commented that it was one of the best plans he has seen completed in all his years of serving 
on the Board and complimented Bill on the excellent work he did on the plan.  
 
Lacey moved to adjourn the meeting. Karel seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 12:37 P.M. 
 
 



BMT Community Transportation Input Committee 
Meeting Minutes  

November 13, 2023, 2:00 PM 

Attending: Glenn Lauinger Andrew Stromme 

Helen Baumgartner Susan Dingle 

Randee Sailer  Jeannie Pedersen 

Not Attending: Trevor Vannett 

Staff: Deidre Hughes  Taylor Kitzan 

Mike Mundahl 

B



  

 
Meeting was called to order at 2:00 P.M. 
 
Regular Agenda 

 
1. Ticket/Pass Refund Policy: Deidre said previously Bis-Man Transit has not had an 

established ticket refund policy.  With more diminishing balance accounts set up now, 
more people are inquiring about refunds.  The policy that will be presented to the Board 
states there are no refunds on CAT tickets, and clarifies that if there is damage to a CAT 
pass, it is at the administrative team’s discretion on whether it will be replaced.  With 
paratransit tickets and diminishing balances, the policy states that refunds will be 
offered in the event of death or relocation of the rider.   

2. 5310/5339 Grant Application: Deidre said within the 5310 grant application, Bis-Man 
Transit is requesting funding for four replacement cutaways, and 50% operating funds 
for non-ADA services.  Within the 5339 grant application, Bis-Man Transit is requesting 
funds to update some things around the facility.  Projects include concrete curbing 
repairs, replacing exterior signs, and painting the facility. 

3. Stuff the Bus: Bis-Man Transit has been holding “Stuff the Bus” events since 2018.  This 
year, Deidre proposes collecting for the Abused Adult Resource Center.  Deidre has been 
in touch with their Executive Director, who has sent a list of needed items.  The 
proposed dates will be the week of December 11th – 15th.  If approved, it will be 
promoted through various channels. 

4. No Show and Rider Drop-off Update: Deidre provided an update on an issue with rider 
drop-offs.  There are some riders that require a care attendant or staff member be 
present when they are dropped off.  There are situations where the care attendant or 
staff member is not there to accept the rider, and the driver must wait for 20-30 
minutes for someone to accept the passenger.  Deidre had reached out to the FTA for 
recommendations.  One recommendation provided by the FTA, was to require an 
emergency contact within a couple miles of the drop-off location that could be 
contacted to accept the passenger.  Deidre said there is no change to the no-show 
policy, which is a standard policy.  Andrew asked if it would go into effect immediately 
and apply to all paratransit riders.  Deidre said it would apply to individuals that require 
staff, and is working with other agencies in the state to see if there are similar policies in 
place.  Glenn asked about charging the service providers in those situations to recover 
the money Bis-Man Transit is losing by waiting for staff.  Deidre will reach out to the FTA 
to see if that is something that could be possible. 

5. Red Route Revision: Red route currently runs from 43rd Avenue up to Lasalle Dr. on 
Ottawa St.  There is no safe place for people to walk in the area of Lasalle Drive and 



  

Highway 83, and there are no pick ups or drop offs there.  Red route is also the tightest 
route for time, and is usually running right up to the hour, or behind, causing delays for 
other routes.  Deidre will propose changing Red route to bypass Ottawa and Lasalle Dr, 
and to instead stay on 43rd Avenue to Highway 83, and then taking Highway 83 to 
Skyline Boulevard.  The other proposed change is to have Red route travel Northbound 
on Centennial Road from Century Aveue, and Southbound on Yorktown from Saratoga 
Avenue to Century Avenue.  Riders would be given at least a one-week notice of the 
changes.  Helen suggested also looking at Purple route, and questioned why Purple 
route goes to Fort Lincoln school each way.  Deidre will talk to Craig about it to see if 
any changes should be made to the Purple route also. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 2:24 P.M. 



BMT Bis-Man Transit Finance Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

November 13, 2023, 10:30 AM 
Via Zoom 

Attending: DeNae Kautzmann, Chair Lynn Wolf 

Glenn Lauinger 

Staff: Deidre Hughes Taylor Kitzan 

C



  

 

Meeting called to order at 10:28 A.M. 

The refund of ticket policy and form was reviewed. DeNae had pointed out inconsistent language and 
the use of antiquated terms prior to the meeting. Deidre presented an updated version. It was 
suggested that since refunds are only made for paratransit when person relocates or dies that a check 
box is used for the reason the request is made. Information regarding where the ticket was purchased 
was deleted as the person requesting the deceased may not know. However, if it’s helpful to staff it 
should remain on the form to be used when a rider is relocating.  The committee recommends the 
policy and form be approved by the Board as discussed.  
 
Contract with the State Developmental Disabilities Council was discussed. There are areas of concern 
including insurance, indemnity, use of training materials developed, reference to Israel, and number of 
trainings required. Lynn wondered if the language regarding not boycotting Israel is due to legislative 
requirements and commented that it has nothing to do with the service being provided. Deidre will 
work with DeNae and the Executive Director of the DD Council.  
 
The 2024 budget was reviewed. Glenn posed questions prior to the meeting and budget changes reflect 
discussion with Deidre. With regard to revenue; paratransit rides have decreased since 2022, and due to 
that fact 2023 numbers were used for farebox revenue, the City of Bismarck contribution of $230,335 
was included in the budget as it was approved but not the City of Mandan’s 2024 contribution as it 
hasn’t been formally approved, and West River rent was short by $400 and it was corrected.  
Expenses showed a decrease in garbage pickup, which is due to a new vendor who charges less. Shop 
equipment was listed under insurance, and that’s been corrected; paratransit rides are estimated, and 
paratransit hours were increased by 5% due to a low number this year because of staff shortage, salaries 
were left blank.  
 
DeNae informed Deidre that the Administrative Committee contacted Finance regarding her increase. 
Their recommendation was for a 5% increase, which Finance agreed with on Oct. 28th. Deidre will 
complete the salary section. She has authority regarding staff increases anywhere from 3-5%. Finance 
Committee recommends the Board accept the budget. It was noted by Glenn that the deficit is $600,000 
approximately which is much lower than the $1.5 million we had anticipated.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:58 A.M. 



Month YTD PY Month PY YTD
% INC/DEC 
OVR PYM

% INC/DEC 
OVR PYTD

RIDERSHIP
FIXED ROUTE 10,756        83,225       7,822  62,312     37.51% 33.56%

PARATRANSIT 7,616   74,513       7,809  77,655    -2.47% -4.05%
Total 18,372        157,738     15,631       139,967  17.54% 12.70%

FR AVG. DAILY BOARDINGS 413.692308
DR AVG. DAILY BOARDINGS 245.677419

Pass./Hour Pass./Hour Pass/Hour

REVENUE HOURS Month YTD Month YTD PY YTD PY YTD
% INC/DEC 
OVR PYTD

FIXED ROUTE 1,798.33     17,445.24        5.98      4.77         3.48     17,891.3      -2.49%
PARATRANSIT 2,592.60     26,242.24        2.94     2.84          3.06     25,379.9      3.40%

Total 4,390.93     43,687.48        4.18     3.61         3.2       43,271.2      

Pass./Mile Pass./Mile

REVENUE MILES Month YTD Month YTD PY YTD
% INC/DEC 
OVR PYTD

FIXED ROUTE 28,833 280,003 0.37      0.30         284,074     -1.43%
PARATRANSIT 37,152.86 364,798.50 0.20     0.20         362,430     0.65%

Total 65,986.26   644,801.00      0.58     0.50         646,504     -0.26%

% INC/DEC % INC/DEC
ON TIME PERFORMANCE Month YTD PY Month PY YTD OVR PYM OVR PYTD

FIXED ROUTE 81.00% 84.00% 79.00% 84.00% 2.53% 0.00%
PARATRANSIT 84.51% 91.65% 86.00% 92.10% -1.73% -0.49%

RIDERSHIP PER ROUTE % INC/DEC
ROUTE Month YTD PY Month 0.42212217
BLACK 2249 19199 1603 40.3%

BLUE 870 6979 848 2.6%
GREEN 2481 16750 1431 73.4%

RED 1381 9774 804 71.8%
ORANGE 2238 17483 1858 20.5%
PURPLE 1537 13040 1278 20.3%

RIDERSHIP BY DESTINATION Month YTD PY Month
(Included in 'Ridership U-Mary 449 2692 223 101.3%
Per Route' Numbers) UTTC 148 812 72 105.6%

Bismarck Library 418 *4084 387 8.0%
Mandan Walmart 142 *1060 99 43.4%

Mandan Dans 477 *3489 431 10.7%
*does not include Sept. 2023

ACCIDENTS Month Month at Fault YTD YTD at Fault
FIXED ROUTE 2 2 10 7

PARATRANSIT 1 1 10 10
SERVICE VEHICLE 0 0 0 0

COMPLAINTS Month YTD
FIXED ROUTE 4 21

PARATRANSIT 0 15
Office Staff 0 1

COMPLIMENTS Month YTD
FIXED ROUTE 0 0

PARATRANSIT 1 11
Office Staff 0 0

October 2023
MONTHLY REPORT

E



BMT
 

Ticket/Pass Return Policy 

CAT Bus – All CAT Bus passes are non-refundable. Bis-Man Transit does not replace or offer 
refunds for lost, stolen, or unused passes. If a bus pass is damaged and not functioning 
properly, the administrative staff will evaluate each request to determine if a replacement pass 
will be issued. 

No refund or replacement ticket will be issued for lost, destroyed, or stolen passes. Bis-Man 
Transit will not refund due to errors in timetables, inconvenience or damage resulting from 
missed stops, delayed, canceled, or missed buses, failure to make connections, or equipment 
shortages. All customers must have a pass in their possession at the time of travel. 

Paratransit/Demand Response – Bis-Man Transit will issue paratransit/demand response 
punch tickets and diminishing balance refunds in the event of the death or relocation of the 
rider. A copy of the death certificate must be provided in the event of death. For riders 
relocating, an updated address must be provided. 

Punch Tickets can only be refunded if the punch card is unused and undamaged. 

If the rider is deceased, diminishing balance funds may be requested up to 60 days from the 
time of death with a copy of the certified death certificate. If this is not requested within 60 Days, 
Bis-Man Transit will absorb the remaining balance. 

All refunds will be issued by check. No cash refunds will be provided under any circumstance. 
Refund requests may be submitted in person at the Transit Facility or via mail. Direct all mailed 
requests to: 

Bis-Man Transit Board 
3750 East Rosser Ave 
Bismarck, ND 58501 

Note: All tickets submitted for refund or exchange are subject to review by Bis-Man 
Transit management. Any ticket deemed to be counterfeit or stolen will be confiscated 
and the requestor denied any of the above options. Refund requests may take up to two 
weeks. 

F



 

BMT
 

REFUND FORM 

All sections must be completed to be considered for refund. Refunds will not be processed on the same 
day. All approved refunds will be by check.  

 

1. PERSONAL INFORMATION 

Customer Name: ___________________________________________ Phone: ______________________ 

Home Address: ________________________ City:___________________ State:_______ Zip:__________ 

E-mail address: _________________________________________________________________________ 

Customer Signature: _______________________________________ Today’s Date: _____/_____/______  

I hereby certify that I am the original purchaser or personal representative of the below-described ticket(s) 

 

2. REASON FOR REFUND 

� Relocation      � Death 

3. TICKET INFORMATION 

Ticket Type:  � Paratransit Punch Tickets    � Diminishing Balance  

Number of Punch Tickets @ $12.00: _____________   Account Balance: ______________ 

Total Refund Request Amount: _________________ 

 

 

 

DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE – OFFICE USE ONLY 

Original Form Taken By:______________________________________  Date Taken: _____/_____/______ 

Amount of Refund: _______________________________  � Claim Approved  � Claim Disapproved 

Authorized By: _____________________________________   Date: _____/_____/______ 

  



  

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS TO ENSURE A PROMPT INVESTIGATION AND 
RESOLUTION OF YOUR REFUND. 

If you are returning unused punch tickets for a refund due to death: 

• Please complete all sections.  
• Punch tickets must be undamaged and unused to be considered for refund.  
• Punch tickets will not be refunded unless a copy of the certified death certificate is provided.  

If you are requesting a refund for a diminishing balance account: 

• Please complete all sections, including the reasoning for the refund.  
• Diminishing balance refunds due to death will not be refunded unless a copy of the certified 

death certificate is provided.  
 

Claims may be submitted in person at the Transit Facility or via mail. If you prefer to submit your claim 
by mail, please send to: 

 
Bis-Man Transit Board 
3750 East Rosser Ave 
Bismarck, ND 58501 
 

We will contact you regarding your claim within two weeks. If you have any questions, please call the 
Administrative Office during regular business hours at 701.258.6817. 

 

 



BMT
 

 

November 16, 2023 

TO: Bis-Man Transit Board of Directors  

FROM: Deidre Hughes, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: FY2025 - 5310 Grant Approval  

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the grant application for submittal to the City of 
Bismarck and the State of North Dakota. 

BACKGROUND:  Section 5310, Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program 
goal is to improve mobility for older adults and persons with disabilities throughout the country.  Under 
49 U.S.C. 5310, funding provides financial assistance for capital purchases and operating assistance for 
transportation services planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special transportation needs of 
older adults and persons with disabilities in all small urban and rural areas. 

DISCUSSION: If awarded, the grant funds will cover expenses from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, which 
is the state fiscal year.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: If the North Dakota Department of Transportation approves the application, Bis-
Man Transit would be required to provide a 20% local match for the mobility manager’s salary and a 
50% local match for the after-hours, early morning, Sunday, and holiday demand response service.  

Project Total Federal Local 
Mobility Manager Salary $38,000 $30,400 $7,600 

After Hours Demand 
Response Service 

$152,200 $76,000 $76,000 

Sunday Demand Response 
Service 

$105,000 $52,500 $52,500 

Early Morning Demand 
Response Service 

$64,000 $32,000 $32,000 

Holiday Demand Response 
Services 

$12,500 $6,250 $6,250 

(4) Cutaway Bus
Replacements

$692,582 $588,695 $103,887 

TOTALS $1,064,082 $785,845 $278,237 

G







































x

x



BMT
 

 

November 16, 2023 

TO: Bis-Man Transit Board of Directors  

FROM: Deidre Hughes, Executive Director  

SUBJECT: FY25 5339 Grant Application Recommendation 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approving the FY25 5339 grant application for submittal to the 
City of Bismarck and the State of North Dakota. 

BACKGROUND: The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 (Bus & Bus Facilities Program) is a 
capital-only program and funds are limited to capital projects to replace, rehabilitate, and purchase 
buses and bus-related equipment, and to construct or rehab bus-related facilities. 

DISCUSSION: With these applications, Bis-Man Transit requests funding to support the facility's 
rehabilitation and renovation projects. These projects include concrete and curbing repair, building 
painting, and exterior building signage.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: If the North Dakota Department of Transportation approves the application, Bis-
Man Transit must provide a 20% local match for the proposed projects.  

Project Total Federal Local 

Concrete and Curbing Repair $50,000 $40,000 $10,000 

Exterior Facility Painting $30,000 $24,000 $6,000 

Exterior Building Signage $10,000 $8,000 $2,000 

TOTALS $90,000 $72,000 $18,000 

H


















	Agenda
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I



